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AMENDMENT #1 

THE PURPOSE OF THIS AMENDMENT IS TO PROVIDE CLARIFICATIONS AND ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS 
ASKED BY A POTENTIAL BIDDER. 

 
YOU MUST CONSIDER THE INFORMATION BELOW IN THE EVALUTATION OF YOUR BID. 

1. RFP AMENDMENTS 

 

1.1 Section 4 - Project Costs 
1.1.1 DELETE: There will be no partial payment for work completed on this project 

1.2 Section 7.1 – Background 
1.2.1 DELETE: The assessment will examine the city run facility, provide life cycle analysis and 

provide expected lifespan of facility components, identify areas and make 
recommendations with estimated costs to correct identified problems.  

1.2.2 ADD: The assessment will examine the city run facility, provide life cycle analysis and 
provide expected lifespan of major facility of components, identify components 
requiring repairs and make recommendations with estimated costs to correct identified 
problems. 
The scope of work includes review of major facility components (non-movable assets), 
as well as the facilities ice resurfacing equipment, forklift and manlift. 
 
The RFP is looking to verify current state of major building components and determine 
their life cycle costs moving forward.  The final deliverable will be used as a first step 
towards the City’s goal of creating a rigorous asset management program. 

1.3 Section 7.2 – Requirements and Scope 
1.3.1 Paragraph: The Facility assessment will at a minimum, provide a current assessment and 

life cycle analysis on the following items: 
1.3.1.1 ADD: Mechanical – Kitchen Equipment  
1.3.1.2 ADD: Movable Equipment – Ice Resurfacing Equipment, Forklift, Manlift 
1.3.1.3 ADD: Other – Arena Boards 

1.3.2 DELETE: Prepare a spreadsheet including all options and recommendations for repairs and 
remediation and the estimated capital and operating costs of each. Where applicable the 
proponent shall prepare a basic estimate of return on investment for the identified 
improvement 
ADD: Prepare a spreadsheet including all recommendations for repairs and remediation 
to bring the current assets up to a state of good repair. The spreadsheet should also 
include the estimated capital and operating costs of each 
 

1.3.3 Paragraph: The building assessment shall encompass, but is not limited to, the following 
core building areas and their associated sub-areas, and equipment within: 

1.3.3.1 DELETE: Fitness Equipment 
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2. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

 
QUESTION 1: The website notes that the RFP was updated, and a revised version was posted on Jan. 11, 
2019, but no addendum is included. What did the revision change?  
 
ANSWER 1: Changes were made throughout the RFP. The revised RFP should be considered as a 
whole.  
 
 
QUESTION 2: The scope of work in Section 7.2 includes the exterior landscape features, building 
envelope and structural integrity of roofs and foundations. With a report submission date of March 22, 
2019 access to these exterior components may be difficult due to snow. Will a follow up on these items 
in the spring be required?  
 
ANSWER 2: Every effort should be made to complete to building condition assessment within the 
schedule laid out in the RFP. If required, the city will review requests by the successful proponent to 
reasonably extend the deadline for exterior portions of the assessments. It is expected that the 
deadline for the report will remain unchanged as per the RFP schedule, the extended work will be 
added to the report in an agreed timeframe once it is complete.  
 
 
QUESTION 3: Section 7.2 also notes ““All assessments shall be carried out by Professional Engineer(s) 
and/or Architect(s) registered in good standing in the Province of Prince Edward Island.” Does this mean 
that representatives of each discipline conducting the on-site review each need to be professionals 
personally licensed in Prince Edward Island, or only the stamping professionals for the report?  
 
ANSWER 3: It is expected that the person(s) responsible for stamping the content of the report be 
registered in good standing in the Province of Prince Edward Island. 
 
  
QUESTION 4: Will as-built drawings and O&M manuals from the original construction of the facility be  
made available?  
 
ANSWER 4: The city will make every effort provide building documentation that is on file. The 
documentation will be provided as required to the successful proponent.  
 
 
QUESTION 5: Is there any more information available in regards to this project – floor areas, square 
footages, building information 

ANSWER 5: The Credit Union Place is approximately 295,000 square feet 
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QUESTION 6: You are specifying “Architects” SPEC’s uses Professional Quantity Surveys to perform the 
Site and Architectural assessments. Is it required to use an Architect? 

ANSWER 6: The assessments shall be carried out by Professional Engineer(s) and/or Architects 
registered in good standing in the Province of Prince Edward Island.  The use of an architect is not 
mandatory. 
 
 
QUESTION 7: Does the assessment include interior fit-up, finishes and fixed equipment? (Section 7.2 
under building envelope requirements) 

ANSWER 7: The assessment is for major building components as listed in section 7.2.  Interior fit-up, 
signage and finishes are not to be included in the scope. 
 
 
QUESTION 8: Under Table 1 Evaluation  Matrix, Criteria #3 references that the team requires “Proven 
experience and success…….. and landscape design for a community revitalization project”. Is the team 
to employ the services of a landscape architect? 

ANSWER 8: Please see updated RFP posted on January 11, 2019 
 
 
QUESTION 9: In section 7.1 Para 5, “this plan will provide the city with a yearly breakdown for the next 
20 years of all items and associated costs the City should be completing to maintain their facilities.” 
Again this generates a few questions: 

a.       What is the City’s level of expectation as to the level of detail to be itemized every 
year for the next 20 years w.r.t. maintenance? 

b.      The phrase above references “facilities” as in many more than one facility. Does 
this RFP anticipate any facility outside of the CUP building? 

ANSWER 9:      
A. The intention of this document is to assess the major building components to determine their 
current state and to determine the level of maintenance/replacement costs required to achieve a full 
lifecycle over a 20 year period.  This life cycle costs will be used by the city long term budgeting of 
future facility costs.  It can be assumed the current level of routine maintenance will continue in future 
years. 
 
B.  Only the Credit union building is to be considered.  Facilities is used to describe areas within the 
CUP (e.g. Arenas, pool, etc.) 
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QUESTION 10: Please define what is meant by the “……core building areas and their associated sub 
areas” on page #8. 

ANSWER 10: An example of sub areas would be, locker rooms within the arenas. This RFP is only 
focused only on the Credit Union Place. 
 
 
QUESTION 11: Under 7.3 point #4, a Quantity Survey (QS) is being requested. QS reports are utilized for 
itemizing all goods materials and services used in construction. Please provide direction as to what is 
required by this phrase. 

ANSWER 11: In terms of this RFP the quantity survey is used to identify the quantity of items that 
require maintenance and for quantities to complete asset lifecycle costing  
 
 
QUESTION 12: Please forward the documents which illustrate the approach to Asset Management. 
We have reviewed the on-line information at 
https://www.princeedwardisland.ca/en/information/transportation-infrastructure-and-
energy/municipal-infrastructure-asset-management and wish to understand the differences. 

ANSWER 12: This work will be one of the city’s first steps towards creating a rigorous asset 
management plan. 
 
 
QUESTION 13: There is no definition of “components”. 7.2 refers to “items” which must be assessed as 
a minimum however the level of detail is still insufficient to understand the level of required effort. For 
HVAC do you wish the Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning System to be evaluated as a single 
system, or as a number of systems, (Pool Ventilation System versus Arena  ventilation system versus 
Bowling Alley ventilation System) or are you looking for the systems to be further broken down into 
their components such as Bowling Alley Air Handling Unit vs Bowling Alley Exhaust fan vs, Bowling Alley 
ductwork, etc. etc. etc. As can be seen each level of investigation is significantly more detailed. Please 
provide direction. 

ANSWER 13: The City would like the assessments to be reviewed at a level that will allow for proper 
life cycle management of the systems, and to predict future budget requirements. The systems 
assumed should be easily identifiable for future reviews. The systems should be evaluated in each 
building area separately.  
 
 
QUESTION 13: Is the schedule able to be extended beyond the dates listed in the RFP 

ANSWER 13: Every effort should be made to complete to building condition assessment within the 
schedule laid out in the RFP. If required, the city will review requests by the successful proponent to 
reasonably extend the deadline of the assessments. Any changes to the schedule are at the sole 
discretion of the City. 
 



 

Request for Proposal: 
Credit Union Place Facility Condition Assessment  

 

Page 5 of 6 
January 18, 2019 

 

QUESTION 14: Will proponents be provided with sample documents which illustrate the approach to 
Asset Management undertaken currently prior to the proposal submission deadline? 

ANSWER 14: SEE ANSWER 12 
 
 
QUESTION 15: Is there a template for the report, or any components of the report, that the successful 
proponent would be required to follow, or are they permitted to develop their own report structure? 

ANSWER 15: There is no template for the report. 
 
 
QUESTION 16: Routine minor maintenance items are not normally included in a long-term capital and 
maintenance plan. What is the minimum value threshold for consideration on this project, if any? 

ANSWER 16: It is to be assumed the City will maintain its current routine maintenance plan, these 
items are not to be included.  Only items requiring additional repairs (above the routine maintenance) 
or replacement should be identified as part of the Life Cycle Plan.  The successful proponent may meet 
with building maintenance staff to determine the typical level of routine maintenance. 
 
 
QUESTION 17: Normally, facility condition assessments are limited to building systems and their 
components, and exclude furniture and other items of equipment which can be removed without 
altering the basic functioning of the building. Is there an inventory list of furnishings and equipment 
that are to be included in the assessment? 

ANSWER 17: It is expected the condition assessment will review the assets listed in section 7.2 of the 
RFP. Only fixed assets should be considered, with the exception of major movable assets specifically 
listed in the RFP section 7.2 (see section 1.3.1.2 of this amendment) 
 
 
QUESTION 18: On page 6, the RFP mentions that a key deliverable will be a long-term capital and 
maintenance plan. Are the requirements for the maintenance portion of this plan limited to indicating 
in which year a given system should be replaced, or is the development of a routine maintenance 
schedule for the building also included in the scope? 
 
ANSWER 18: It is expected the plan will include all non-routine maintenance items that are outside 
of the typical routine maintenance already carried out by the City. 
 
 
QUESTION 19:  On page 7, under Access, it mentions Lifts as within scope. Are there elevators, 
escalators, or dumbwaiters in the building?  
 
 
ANSWER 19: There are two elevators located within the building 
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QUESTION 20:  What is the number of storeys to be assessed? 
 
ANSWER 20: The building is a multilevel building with changes in elevation throughout. In general 
the building is considered to be a one to two storey building. 

 
 

NO CHANGES HAVE BEEN MADE TO THE RFP SUBMISSION DEADLINE. 
 

End of section.  
 
ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN UNCHANGED. 


